
	

1	
	

West Hill Estates Homeowners’ Association      
P.O. Box 5892 
Salem, Oregon 97304 
Minutes	of	Homeowners’	Annual	Meeting	–	June	9,	2016	
The	secretary,	Chuck	Strauss,	is	recording	the	minutes	
	
Meeting Call to Order: By President Behmard at 7:15 P.M. President Behmard stated that a Quorum was present and 
that the meeting would be recorded for accuracy in preparing the minutes of the meeting. 
 
Board Members Present: Hamid Behmard, Blair Grames, Lorre Euen, Chuck Strauss, Scott Gilbert, Spencer 
Wintersteen, Kathy Wautlet. 
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Homeowners present: See attached list. 
 
Location: Meeting Room of Roth’s, 1130 Wallace Road, NW, Salem Oregon 
 
Agenda: President Behmard asked if there were any items to be added to the agenda. None were given.  He then asked to 
approve the agenda.  It was moved by homeowner Edie Hefter and seconded by Sammi Wright.  Motion passed. 
 
Minutes: President Behmard asked if there were any corrections for last year’s annual meeting minutes.  Several typos 
were found.  The secretary Chuck Strauss noted corrections.  A motion was then made to accept the amended minutes by 
Lorre Euen and seconded by Scott Gilbert.  The motion carried.  A request was then made by a homeowner to have the 
minutes read.  Lorre Euen made a motion to wave the reading on the minutes of the 2015 annual meeting.  Scott Gilbert 
seconded it.  A show of hands vote was taken and the motion passed. 
  
Announcements: President Behmard stated he had no announcements and asked if there were any from the Board 
members.  There were none so meeting was moved on. 
 
President’s	Comments:	President	Behmard	introduced	the	directors.		He	introduced	himself	and	had	each	Director	
introduce	himself	or	herself.			
President	Behmard	presented	some	of	the	Board’s	challenges	and	accomplishments:	

• We	have	recently	established	a	Facebook	page	that	will	be	reported	on	later.		
• We	also	have	a	website	with	our	own	domain	name	that	will	also	be	reported	on	later.		It	has	all	the	minutes,	

CC&R’s,	policy	resolutions,	and	architectural	control	committee	request	form.	
• We	have	severed	from	the	management	trust	cooperation.		Blair	Grames	has	taken	on	this	role	and	will	give	a	

report.		He	has	to	list	all	homeowner	on	Quickbooks.		This	saves	us	a	lot	of	money	and	the	management	trust	
company	was	not	doing	most	of	the	things	we	wanted	them	to	do.		It	was	costing	us	$1,000	per	month	to	use	
them.		President	Behmard	acknowledged	the	hard	work	of	Blair	Grames.	

• The	lawsuit	that	was	brought	against	seven	homeowners	and	the	association	was	mentioned.		It	happened	the	
end	of	August	2016	and	by	November	3rd,	2016	the	person	who	brought	the	lawsuit	dismissed	the	case.		We	still	
needed	an	attorney	that	cost	the	HOA	$10,000	with	the	rest	paid	by	our	insurance	company.		President	
Behmard	urged	all	homeowners	to	try	to	find	a	middle	way	if	there	are	difficulties.		Try	mediation	first.			

• President	talked	about	the	common	area	costing	the	association	about	$16,000	per	year	for	landscaping	and	
watering.		He	proposed	that	the	new	board	consider	replacing	the	area	with	shrubs.		It	is	also	a	waste	of	water.			
He	is	looking	for	feedback	from	homeowners	for	slowly	changing	this	phase-by-phase.		In	the	long	term	it	will	
save	us	money	and	is	the	environmentally	right	thing	to	do.	

• We	started	the	process	on	unifying	all	the	phases	of	the	CC&R’s.		We	would	like	to	have	one	CC&R.		If	any	
homeowner	would	like	to	help	with	this,	please	let	the	Board	know.		 

	



	

2	
	

Secretary Report: Chuck Strauss had nothing to report. 
Questions: President Behmard asked if there were any questions at this time. 

• A question was asked to explain the lawsuit.  President Behmard explained it was about phases 4, 5, and 6.  It 
concerned the restriction on the height of trees where the trees cannot exceed the height of the house.  The 
CC&R’s were amended in phases 4, 5, and 6 to go away.  The homeowner was not happy with the neighbor 
below them as his trees were taller and sued that neighbor and everyone on that side of the street and the 
association.  It was resolved because the homeowner being sued said you just needed to tell me and he took care 
of the problem. 

 
Treasures Report: Blair Grames made a presentation that covered several points. 

• When we discharged management trust, we did retain the services for some things.  We use Accuraccounts to 
provide some of the basic work to help us out that costs approximately $200 per month.  They are also going to 
help us with the assessment letters that will be going out at the end of the month.   

• The Common area maintenance uses a landscaper that costs us approximately $14,000 per year.  We have had 
some issues of the past several years concerning sprinkler heads.  The wrong types are along parts of Orchard 
Heights.  We will replace them to get a better distribution of water that is more efficient.   

• Financial information was passed out (see attached) on proposed budgets for the next year.  It will be 
approximately the same as this year.  We have a bank balance of $43,185.58.  $16,000 is reserve, $27,000 of 
working funds are available.  The rest is laid out including profit and loss and what we have spent. 

• Blair Grames then asked if there are any questions. 
o A homeowner asked what was the nature of e the reserves.  Blair Grames explained these are funds set 

aside for emergencies such as the accident on Orchard Heights. Even though it didn’t cost the association 
anything as it was covered by the driver’s insurance. 

o A homeowner asked when we decided to accept the new budget.  Blair Grames explained that it was gone 
over in the May homeowners meeting.  We will send out the budget to the homeowners since it has not 
been 30 days since the Board approved it. 

o A homeowner asked how we were doing regarding homeowners who haven’t paid the association dues.  
Blair Grames said there are about ten problems, some rather large amounts.  We collected two of them 
last year in the amounts of approximately $8,000 and $2,000.  Fines and fees are best to be taken care of 
immediately.  We usually collect them on liens.   

 
CC&R Report:  Spencer Wintersteen began with a show of hands of the time frame the homeowners present lived in the 
neighborhood.  His title company told him that West Hill Estates was a highly transient neighborhood.  He stated that his 
house had changed hands seven times.  As a result of the many different homeowners in the neighborhood, there has been 
a lot of variance in the interpretation of how the CC&R’s have been done.  This background information is set for the 
newsletter and our proposed plan going forward.  Spencer Wintersteen mentioned that when he moved into his house ten 
months ago he was greeted with a welcome letter and a violation letter at the same time.  He knew it needed painting. He 
contacted the Board to find out what he needed to do and what actual CC&R he was in violation of.  He then looked at 
many homes that were also not in compliance of the CC&R’s.  He started reading the CC&R’s and found there are a lot of 
variations in the different phases and many that are left open to interpretation of the CC&R’s.  The CC&R’s were written 
to: preserve and maintain livability, maintain and upkeep your curb appeal, and maintain market value.  Spencer thought it 
would be great if there were a way to consolidate the CC&R’s.  He found out there was a motion from a previous Board to 
do that.  Homeowners should be able to understand what they are not in compliance of.  The Board should be able to cite 
the article and number of what the noncompliance is.  The Board’s intent is to say what this is and that we understand that 
homeowners get busy, things happen.  If a homeowner can get things back in order, that would be great.  If a second letter 
were to go out, it could include a fine and a time period of when that needs to be fixed.  We want to clarify who is in 
compliance and who isn’t.  These would be objective, not subjective decisions.  During the month of June we will be 
sending out reminders to homeowners to look at the CC&R’s and the condition of the outsides of their homes, paint, 
moss, fences, etc.  On July 1st, those homes not in compliance with the CC&R’s, the association will take action.  By this 
date, get your house checked on and make the necessary repairs.  This is a friendly reminder to get things re-established.  
Without homes in compliance, it is a recipe for the disillusion of the actual CC&R’s.  We are asking for your help.  If we 
need to come together as a community to help our neighbors come into compliance that would help our neighborhood 
come back to the standards we all want and expect.  This will be mailed out to everyone. 



	

3	
	

QUESTIONS: 
• A homeowner said he bought a property that was out of compliance and made it in compliance to the CC&Rs.  

What is your authority to change the CC&R’s?  What is the process for these changes?  President Behmard said 
the homeowners would vote on it.  Spencer Wintersteen said that a majority vote of 75% of the homeowners 
could change the CC&R’s.  This vote will take place by mail.  Lorre Euen said that an attorney would look it over 
first. 

• A question from a homeowner was asked if the CC&R’s and bylaws are on the website.  The answer is yes.  Also, 
they are available though your title company. 

• A homeowner asked if the people who don’t vote on the changes to the CC&R’s a yes or no vote.  Spencer 
Wintersteen said he would have to look at the bylaws that cover this. 

 
Architectural Control Committee:  Hamid Behmard reported that several homeowners have started projects without 
prior approval from the Architectural Control Committee.  If the project is not in compliance with the CC&R’s, then the 
project will have to be redone.  Hamid then reported that in the past year the ACC has seen: 2 new roofs, 10 new house 
paintings (2 were not approved ahead of time that had to be repainted), 3 fences (2 not approved, but they were ok), 2 
garden sheds, 2 new houses, 2 new gazebos, 3 door/window replacements, 1 solar panel (now that solar panels are 
allowed, they still need to be in compliance with the looks), and 5 landscapes. 
 
Common Area Committee:  Lorre Euen reported that president Behmard already mentioned about making the common 
area being more environmentally friendly.  Blair Grames mentioned about the sprinkler heads.  We had a mole problem 
that has been taken care of for now.  The accident that happened the end of January 2016 involved an intoxicated driver 
on Orchard Heights who veered off the road into the common area wall and also took out two properties’ fences.  Lorre 
Euen took care of working with the insurance companies and landscaping and masonry companies who did a really good 
job repairing the damages.  The new cement blocks look newer than the rest, but the weather will take care of making 
them look like the rest.  The insurance company came through for these repairs for the association and the homeowners 
involved.   
QUESTIONS: 

• A homeowner asked if we were going to replace the bark dust.  Lorre Euen said it depends.  Right now the Board 
doesn’t see a real need for it.  It will also depend on if we move forward with replacing the common area with 
shrubs as was mentioned earlier.  The homeowner then asked about the abundance of weeds in the commons area.  
Blair Grames said he met with Russell’s Landscaping last week that said they would take a look at this and report 
to Blair Grames this week.  We are looking at weeds, shrubs, trees, etc.  Blair Grames felt like Russell’s has done 
the proper treatment with these issues. 

• A homeowner asked about signs in the common areas (for example, construction signs).  President Behmard said 
that is part of the association and is not legal.  Lorre Euen said there should be no signs in the common area with 
the exception of homeowners advertising a yard sale.  Those are temporary and should be removed in a couple of 
days.  Lorre Euen said if she sees a sign, she takes it down and calls the company and tells them where they can 
pick up their sign.  Open houses are also ok for the day and then removed.  Real estate signs are allowed on 
individual properties. 

 
Welcoming Committee Chair: Sammi Wright said that she has met some wonderful new people.  She just got a new list 
that she will go around and meet the homeowner.  She then asked if there were new people to the neighborhood to stand 
up and introduce themselves.  Several homeowners did that and were recognized. 
 
Website/Newsletter: President Behmard reported that we have a website: WHEHOA.com.  Scott Gilbert created the 
website.  Scott Gilbert said there have been other websites in the past and that we have lost contact how to maintain them 
and would begin to take them down.  The new website will have the minutes, CC&R’s, bylaws, forms, etc. on it.  
 
Facebook Page: Chuck Strauss created a Facebook page.  To find it, do a search for West Hill Estates Home Owners 
Association.  It is a place for people to download forms, meeting announcements, questions, etc.   
QUESTIONS: 



	

4	
	

• A homeowner asked if it was an open or closed group.  It is an open group.  Chuck Strauss said that he has control 
on what goes on there and can remove any inappropriate comments.  Every time someone makes a comment on 
the Facebook page, Chuck Strauss gets an email saying that. 

 
President Behmard said that he would really like to communicate to people through email.  He mentioned that the 
newsletter cost about $200 including postage.  It is so much easier to send an email to make announcements.  The next 
topic President Behmard reported on wa complaints about people not stopping at stop signs.  With a lot of children 
playing in the neighborhood it is a hazardous thing.  He asked that everyone follow the traffic rules.  Sammi Wright 
mentioned how fast some people were driving along Chapman Hill.  Chuck Strauss mentioned that he as seen a police 
officer at times monitoring this.  President Behmard mentioned there were drones in the neighborhood.  We are going to 
check with the state laws concerning this.  It is an issue of privacy.   
QUESTIONS: 

• A homeowner asked if there was any thought given to putting in a speed bump.  Another homeowner said the bike 
lanes were added to slow traffic.  Historically, the city will not put in speed bumps.  A homeowner said in another 
neighborhood the city had to do a traffic study including a speed sign.  He stated that the city would not do speed 
bumps because it slows down emergency vehicles.  If we want to pursue this, after the traffic study we have to 
take a petition to the city.  The neighborhood would have to front the cost for this.  Another homeowner suggested 
installing a round about.  President Behmard said this would be a good topic for the next Board.  One homeowner 
suggested more speed limit signs to remind drivers of the speed limit. 

 
Elections: President Behmard said that we would now conduct the election of new officers for the Board of Directors. He 
explained that there are seven positions on the Board and five are up for election.  He explained the process.  He wrote 
down the names of the people who wished to run for office.  After the names were recorded, each candidate made a brief 
statement. 
 
Candidates 
Lorre Euen 
Scott Gilbert 
Shelly Hill 
Donna Herring 
Chuck Strauss 
Spencer Wintersteen 
Terry Witt 
 
A discussion on how to handle the proxies should be considered.  It was decided that the proxies would be handled like a 
ballot and the person with the proxy could vote for any candidates he or she wished.  Ballots were counted and the results 
were: 
 
Lorre Euen 
Scott Gilbert 
Chuck Strauss 
Spencer Wintersteen 
Terry Witt 
 
Adjournment	:	9:00P.M.	

Submitted	by	Chuck,	Secretary	

Attachments:	
Agenda	
Sign-In	Sheet	
Proposed	Budget	
Balance	Sheet	



	

5	
	

Profit	and	Loss	Budget	vs.	Actual	
Proof	of	Notice	
C&R	Report.	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



	

6	
	

	



	

7	
	



	

8	
	



	

9	
	

	



	

10	
	

	



	

11	
	

	



	

12	
	

	



	

13	
	

	



	

14	
	

	



	

15	
	

	


